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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445931 - L)
fIncorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors hereby submit their report and the audited financial statements of the Group
and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2016.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 18 to the financial statements.

There has been no significant change in the nature of these principal activities during the
financial year ended 31 December 2016.

Results
Group Company
RM R
! oss for the financial year 7,472 858 483 861

Reserves and provisions

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year
other than as disclosed in the financial statements.

Dividends

No dividend has been paid, declared or proposed since the end of the previous financial
year. The Directors do net recommend any dividends for the current financial year ended
31 December 2016.

Directors
Directors who served since the date of the last report are:

Dato’ Seri Mcohd Shariff Bin Omar

Lin, Kai-Min

Lin, Kai-Hsuan

Higw Seng

Syed |lbrahim Bin Syed Abd.Rahman {Appointed en 29 June 2016)
Lin, Tsai-Rong (Retired on 28 May 2016)

Lin Msu, Li-Chu (Retired on 28 May 2016)

Lin, Kai-Wean (\Vacated office on 28 May 2016)




CYMAQO HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445931 - U)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Directors’ interests in shares

The holdings and deemed hatkdings in the Ordinary Shares and warrants of the Company
and its related corporations (other than wholly-owned subsidiaries} of thocse who were
Diractors at the end of the financial year, as recorded in the Register of Directors’
Shareholding kept unger Section 134 of the Companies Act, 1285 are as follows:

Number of ordinary shares of RM1 each

At At

1.1.2016 Bought Sold 31.12.2016
Direct inierast:
lin, Tsai-Rong 21,100,000 - {5,000000) 46,100,000
Lin, Kai-Min 7,873,750 5,872,500 - 13,848,250
Lin, Kai-Hsuan 4,330,500 - - 4.330,500
Lin, Kai-Wen 850,000 - (650,000 -
Lin Hsw, Li-Chu 222 500 - (222 500} -
Hiew Seng 62,500 - - 62,500

Lin, Tsai-Rong by virtue of his interests in shares in the Company is also deemed interested
in shares of all the Company's subsidiaries to the extant the Company has an interest.

None of the other Directors holding office at the and of the financial year had any interest in
the ordinary shares of the Company and its related corporations,

Directors’ benefits

Since the end of the previcus financial year, no Diractor of the Company has received nor
become entitled to receive any bensfit (other than a bensfit included in the aggregate
amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by Directors as disclosed In the
financial statements or the fixed salary of a full-time employee of the Company) by reason
of a contract made by the Company or a related corparation with the Director or with a firm
of which the Director is a mamber, or with a company inwhich the Director has a substantial
financial interest, except as disclosed in Note 25 to the Financial Statements.

There were no arrangements during and at the end of the financial year, which had the
object of enabling the Directors of the Company to acquire bensfits by means of the
acqulsition of shares in, or debeantures of the Company or any othar body corporate.




CYNAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. Na. 445831 - U)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

lssues of shares and debentures

There were no changas in the authorised and issued and paid-up capital of the Company
during the financial year. .

There were no debentures issued during the financial year.

Treasury shares

As at 31 December 2016, the Company held as treasury shares a total of 1,464,500 of its
75,000,000 issued ordinary shares. Such treasury shares are held at a carrying amount of
RME30,209 and further details are as disclosed in Note 24 to the financial statemeants.

Options granted over unissued shares

Mo options were granted fo any person to tzke up unissued shares of the Company during
the financiat year.

Other statutory information

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the
Directors ook reasonable steps to ascertain that:

{iY  all known bad debts had been writtan off and adequate allowance had been made for
doubtful debts; and

(il all current assets have been stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.




CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445931 - )
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Other statutory information {continued)
At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances;

{ii  which would render the amount written off for bad debts, or the amount of the
allowance for doubtful debts in the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company inadequaie to any substantial extent; or

(il which would render the value attrbuted to the current assets in the financial
statemsants of the Group and of the Company misleading; or

(i) which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of
assets or abilitles of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate; or

{iv) not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements, which would render
any amount stated in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
misleading.

As at the date of this report, there does nof exist;

{iy  any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Campany that has arisen since the
end of the financial year which secures the liakilities of any other persen; or

{il  any contingent liability in respect of the Group and of the Company that has arisen
since the end of the financial year. '

Mo contingent liakility or other liability of the Group and of the Company has become
enforceabls, or is llkely to bscome enforceable within the peripd of twelve months after the
end of the financial year which, in the opinlon of the Directors, will or may substantially affect
the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations as and when they fall
due.

In the apinion of the Directors, the financial performance of the Group and of the Company
for the financisl year ended 31 December 2016 have not been substantially affected by any
itern, transaclion cr event of a material and unusual nature nor has any such item,
transaction or event cccurrad in the interval between the end of the financial year and the
date of this report. '




CYMAQ HOLDINGS BERHAD
fO0, Mo, 445031 - L}
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Other matters

On 31 August 2018, the Companies Bill 2015 racelved Royal Assenl and was gazelied as
the Companies Act 2018 ("GaA 20167, Subsequent to the Company's financial year end,
the Reglstrar of the Companies Commission of Malaysia announced thal CA 2016 wauld
he implemented an a staggered basis with the firet phase lo be effective on 31 January
2017, With the anforcament of the first phase of the CA 2046, the Companies Act 1965
{"CA 1285") is repealed. Notwithstanding the repeat of CA 15965, the transitional provisions
under the CA 2018 stipulate thal ohligations in respect of the CA 1965 shall not be affected
willt the implementatlon of the CA 2018 hut shall continue to remain in ferce. The Direclors
hava hance prepared the Company's financial statements for the financial year anded 31
December 2016 in accordanca with the provisions of CA 1965,

The CA 2016 inlroduces new statutory obligalions that Include, inter alla, no par value
shares, solvency test, liberallzation of financial assistance prohibition for company o
purchaee its own shares, continuting enhancement of Directors' duties and governance
regnonzibiiities, and share buyback regime amendments. The Directors do not expacl any
materia! finencial impact to the Company’s financial statements from compliance with these
new statutory obllgations, and the Campany shall comply with the CA 2016 and make the
appropriats disclosures al the appropriate time,

Auditors

Tha auditors, Messrs FKF, have indicated their willingness to conlinue in office.

Signed on behall of the Board
it accordance with a resoluiion of the Dirsclors,

A

LIN, KAL-MIN

Director

SYED ' IMN SYED ABD. RAHMAMN
Director

Kuala Lumpur

Dated 22 APR 2017




CYMAQ HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. Mo. 445931 - 1))
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO SECTION 189{15) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

In the opinion of the Directors, the accempanying financial slatements set 0l on pages 15
fo 77 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
Internalional Financial Reporting Standards and the reguiremants of the Companies Act,
1965 in Malaysia 50 as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and
of the Company as at 31 December 2016 and of their financial pedormance and cash flows
for the financlsl year ended on fhat date,

In the opinlon of Lhe Directors, the supplementary information set oul in Note 33 to the
financial stalements has been prepared In ascordance with Lhe Guidance on Spacial Matter
No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealissd Profits or Losses in lhe Conkext of
Lisclosuse Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Lisling Reguiremants, as issued
by the Malaysian Institute of Accountanls, and presented based on the format prescribed
by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Signed on bahalf of the Board
in accordance with a resolullon of lha Directors,

b

£

LN, KAL-MIN M SYED ABD.RAHMAN

Diractor Director

Kuala Lumpur

Dated § 2 APR 2017

STATUTORY DECLARATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 169(16) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

I, LI, KAI-MIN, being the Director primarily responsibile for the financial management of
CYMAC HOLDIMNGS BERHAD, do solemnly and sincerely declare that to the best of my
knowledge and helief, lhe accompanying financial statements sef out on pages 15 to 77
are In my opinion correct, and | make this solemn doclaration conscientiously beligving the
same o be true and by virtue of the pravisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1880,

Subscribad and sclemnly daclared by 1
the abovenamed LINM, KA-MIN ]
al Kuala Lumpur }

}

on 27 APR 201
ﬁ.&‘*‘_—#

N WE32
Nerma: Y TENGKU FARIBLLIDM
BIN TENGEU SULAMAN
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INDEPENDENT AUDRITORS’ REPORT -
TO THE MEMEERS OF CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445831 - U)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Cpinion

We have audited the financial statemants of Cymao Holdings Berhad, which comprise the
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2016 of the Group and of the Company,
and the statements of profit. or loss and other comprehensive income, statements of
. changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the
financial year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting pelicies, as set out on pages 15 o 77. '

In our opinian, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2018, and of their
financial performance and their cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance
with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financia! Reporting Standards
and the requiremeants of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.

Basls for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia
and International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficisnt and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Raspons|bliities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws fon
Professional Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants {"By-
Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professicnal Accountants {'IESBA Code”), and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and tha IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for
the cirrent year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements of the Group and of the Gompany as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Tal +5088-266 723 * Fax +B088-267 721 « Emeil phikkippkimalaysia.com « www.pkf.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CYNMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445831 - U) '

{incorporated in Malaysia)

{continued)
Key Audit Matters {continued)

Area of focus How our audlt addressed the key audit matter

Gaing concern

As highlighted in the statements We obtained and reviewed the going concern assessment
of profit or loss and other prepared by management including the one year cash flow
comprehensive  income  and forecast.

statements  of cash flows

respectively, the Group's tetal We additicnally reviewead thair log supply contracts to ascertain
compreéhensive loss for the the sufficiency of logs to support the level of operations
financlal year had increased forecasted for the next financial year, and checked the Group’s
from EM2,06878% in the compliance with the berrowing terms and did not note any non-
previous  financkal  yaar 10 compliance.

RM7 472,858 for the current

financial year while its net cash

from opsrating activities of the

Group deteriorated from 2

surplis of RM4 248 578 to a

surplus of RM756,608.

The judgements made by the
Directors in assessing whether
any material uncertainties exlst
which cast stgnificant doubt as
to the Group's abllity to meet its
zbllities  and whether the
mitipating actions identified by
management are achievable,
are therefore considered 2
matter of most significance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD

(Co. No. 445831 - )
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

fcontinued)

Key Audit Matters {continued)

Area of focus

How our audit addrassad the key audit matter

Impairment of property, plant
and eguipment

As highlighted before, the
Group's losses for the current
financial year had increased
significantly, which is an
indicator that its plant and
machinery may be impairad.

We obtained the Group's impairment review performed for Two
{2) of the subsidiary companies that most contributed to the
losses, Cymao Plywood Sdn. Bhd. and Inovwood Sdn. Bhd.

As highlighted in Note 2.2 {a), Significant accounting judgments
and estimates, the recoverable amount which is based on the
fair value as valued by independent professional valuers during
the financial year is significantly higher than their carrying values,
and therefore nc impairment is required. Due to the extent of the
surplus between fair values and carrying values, the valuation is
not deemed sensitive to any change in variables,

We additionally performed the following:

{iy assessed the compelence, capabilities, objectivity and
qualifications of the Director's independent valuers;

{ii} discussed the scope of their work with management and
reviewed their terms of engagamant to determine that there
were no maters that affected their indepentdsnce and
chjectivity or imposed scopa limitation upon them; and

fiii) reviewad and assessed the significant assumptions and
estimates used by the valuars in determining their final
humbers andg found them to be reasonable, as well as tested
the mathamatical accuracy of all calculations included within
the final valuation reports,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REFORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF CYMAQ HOLDINGS BERHAD

{Co. No. 445831 - )
fIncorporated in Malaysia)

(continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Area of focus

How our audit addregssed the key audlt matter

Valuatioh of recalvables

As highlighted in Note 18.2,
other receivables of the Group
amounted to RWM5 840122 of
which RM352.816 has been
cutetanding for more than Six
(B} months and RM1,097 588
for more than One (1) year,
against a&an allowance for
doubtful dabts of RM184,887,

Dua to the significance of these
balances, the judgemants made
by the Directors in assessing
the adequacy of the allowance
is therefore considerad a matter
of most significance.

Other recaivablies of the Group ralate mainly to one of their
subsidiary company, Cymao Plywood Sdn Bhd, whose total
other receivables amounted to RM4,B52 734, or approximately
83% of total Group other receivables.

For those significant balances, we have checked subsequent
receipts and for those long outstanding and without significant
subsaguent receipts, we have discussad with manageiment their
basis to support the racoverability of these amounts, Arising from
this review, addilional allowances for doubtful debts were made
on certain debtors for which thers zre indications that these
balances may not be recoverable in full,

10
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TQ THE MEMBERS OF CYMAQ HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No, 445031 - 1)

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

{cantinued)
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon

The Diractors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company and our auditors' report thereon.

Qur opinicn on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance ceonclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whethar the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements of the Group and
of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to he
materiglly misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that thare is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilltles of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements
of the Group and of the Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and
the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. The Directors are also
responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statemants of the Group and of the Company that are free fram
material misstatemant, whether due to fraud of error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basls of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the
Company or to cease oparations, or have ne realistic alternative but to do so.

Audltors' Rasponsibillties for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtaln reasonable assurance sbout whether the financlal statements
of the Group and of the Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whather
due to fraud or error, and o issue an auditors’ report that inciudes our spinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards
on Auditing will always detect 'a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arige from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

11
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445931 - L)

{Incorporatad in Malaysia)

{continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional sceplicism throughout the audit. We also:

i. Identify and assess the ricks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the
Group and of the Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those riske, and cobtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control,

i. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an spinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and the Company's intarnal
control.

ii. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit avidence abtained, whether a material uncerntainty
exists related to events or canditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's or
the Company's ability to continue as a gaing concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertsinty exists, we are required to draw atlention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclesures in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtainad up to the date of our auditors' report. However, fullre evenis
or conditions may cause the Group or the Company to cease to contimue as & geing
concern. .

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of
the Group and of the Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achigves fair presentation.

vi, Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an gpinion on the financial
statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Wea communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal contrel that we identify during our audit.

12
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445931 - 1))

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

{continued}

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirernents regarding indepandanca, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably ke thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company for the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in cur auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not ke communicated in our report because the adverse conssquences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest bengfits of such communication.

Report on Other Lagal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1955 in Malaysia, we also
repart the following:

{2) Inour opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act
to be kept by the Company and its subsidiaries have been properly kept in
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

{b) We are satisfied that the accounts of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated
with the Company's financial statements are in form and content appropriate and
proper for the purposes of the preparation of the financial statements of the Group
and we have received satisfactory information and explanations required by us for
those purposes.

{c} Our audit reports on the accounts of the subsidiaries did not contain any qualification
or any adverse comment made under Section 174{3) of the Act.

Other Reporting Responsibilities

The supplementary infarmation set out in Note 33 is disclosed to mest the requirement of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and is not part of the financial statements. The Diractors
are rasponsible for the preparation of the supplamantary information in accordance with
Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Ragllsed and Unrealisad Profits or
Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing
Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants ("MIA Guidance"} and
the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinien, the supplementary
information |s prepared, In all matarial raspsects, in accordance with the MIA Guidance and
the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

12
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REFORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445931 - U)

{Incarparated in Malaysia)

{continued)

Other Matters

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with
Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

R

PKF CHAU MAN KIT

AF 0911 2325031 8(JHPH)
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

Kota Kinabalu

Dated 2 7 APR 2017

14




CYMAQ HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445931 - L)
{Incorparated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

MNote
Revenue &
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Interast income 5
Other income &

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Other expenses 7
Finance costs 8
Share of loss of joint venture

" Lass hefore taxation 9
Incame tax expense 12

Loas for the financial year
Cther comprahensive income

Total comprehensive loss for
the financial year

Total comprehensive loss
attributable to owners of the
Company

Loss per share attributable ta
ownete of the Company
isen)

Basic 13

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM RM RM RM
115,560,808 131,649,220 - -
(111,763,848} (120,045,588} -
3,798,960 11,603,632 - -
104,372 3,006 - .
1371213 1,553,765 5,313 284 784
f4,588,008) {4,378, 830} - -
(7.254,610) (0,357,600}  (489.174)  (525,718)
{474,882) (350,162) L {18,390)
{387,304} (306,808} - -
{198,837} - - -
(7,652,096) {1,234 038} (483,861} (257 324)
179,238 (B34,756) - -
(7A472,868)  (2,088,791) (483,861} (257,324}
(7.472,858)  (2,088,791)  {483861)  {267,324)
(TA72.858) (2,068,791 (483,861)  (257,324)

{10.16) (2.81}

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the

financial staternents.

15




CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD

(Co. No. 445931 - U}
{Incorporated in Mataysia)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and
eguipment

Land use rights

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments accounted for
using the equity method

Other receivables

Gurrent assels

Invantories

Trade and other receivables
Tax recoverable

i-ash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LEABILITIES
Current liabllittes

Loans and berrowings
Trade and other payahles
Taxatlon

Mon-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Peferred tax liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASBETS

Equlty attributable to
owners of the Company

Share capital

Share pramium

Treasury shares

Accumulated losses

Total equilty

Mota

21
22

“21
23

24
24
24

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Group Company
2016 20156 2016 2015
RM RM RM RM
36,121,170 35872729 10,482 20,983
Bo2 818 808,970 - -
- - 79066937 79,066,937
440 163 - -

_____ - 1.647,233 - -
37 454,151 38,628,832 79077428  T790B7 920
23,529 244 26,696,362 - -
23,396,877 26,585,381 11,086,704 11185822

494 468 T - -
4,27h334 7. 765618 10,076 14,039
51695823 61,047,381 11,076.780 11,208,861
69,151,074 89,576,293 90,154,208 80,287 781
7,447 433 7,174,681 - -
8,117,406 11,308 900 11.632.85621 11,209,232
- 195310 - -
15,564,838 18,678,081 11838621 11,299,232
1, 792171 1,485 885 - -
1,707,568 1,853,153 - -
3,488,730 3.338,838 - -
19,064,568 22,017,829  11638,521 112802332
70,085,508 77,558,364 78,514,688 78,998,549
75,000,000 75,000,000 75,000,000 75,000,000
17,374,387 17,374,387 17, 3¥4,387 17,374 387
{630, 809) (530,809) {630,809} {630,809)
(21,867 972) (14,185 114) (132287800 {12744,829)
70,085,506 77,658,964 78614,688 78,993,548
£9,150,074 89,576,293 90,154,208 90,297,781

The accompanying accounfing policies and expfanafm}f notes form an integral part of the

financial siatements.
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD

(Co. No. 445831 - Uy
{incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Cash flows from operating
activities
Loss befare texation

Adjustrents for:

Allowance far slow mowving
inventories

Allowance for doubtful debts

Amortisation of land usa rights

Bad debts writtan off

Dsprecistion of property, plant
and aquipment

Finance costs

Gain on disposal of praperty,
plant and equipment

Interest income

Share of loss of share in joint
venture

Operating cash flows bafore

working capltal changeas
Change in inventaries
Change in receivables
Change in payables

Cash generated from/ {used
In} operations

Income tax paid

Ingome tax refunded

Interest paid

Net cash from/! {used in)
operating activities

{forward)

The accompanying accounting policies and explfanatory notes form an infegrafl part of the

financial statemenis.

MNote

Group Company
016 2015 2016 2015
RN R RM RM
{7,652, 006) {1,234,035) (483.861) {257 324)
- 227,005 -
84,887 - -
16,152 53,230 - -
5726 16,380 - 16,380
4,810,823 7,442,798 10,491 20,581
397 304 306,806 - -
{668, 763) - -
{104,372 {3,098) -
199 837 - .

(2,810,702) 8,808,100 (473,370) {212.853)
3,167,118 4,483,085 .
1,206 589 {7.557.912) 129,118 2 111,747

347 042 2,094 963 240,289 (2 056,42
1,810,047 5,720,236 (3.9683)  (164,248)
(665 434) (540.943) - .

9,300 68,083 - -
_f3gv304)  (306,808) - -
756,609 4,943,578 [3.963) (184,248}

18




CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445831 - U)
{incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

{continued)

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
Note RN RM RM RN

Cash flows from Investing

activities
Acqulsition of property, plant and

equipmeant (5,709,628 {1,537,285) - -
Decrease in short-term deposits

with a licensed bank 885,573 - - -
Intarast raceived 104,372 3,085 - -
Acqulsition of jaint venture (640,000} - - -
Praceeds from disposal of

property, plant and equipment 1,419,326 - - -
Met cash used in investing

activities (3,840,358} . {1,534.280) - -
Cagh flows from financing

activities
Crawdown of bankers'

acceptance 27,258,000 18,718,000 - -
Drawdaown of kerm loans 450,000 - - -
Repayment of bankers’

acceptance (27,485,000) (17,324,000} - -
Repayment of foreign currency

trade loan - {940,756) - -
Repayment of term loans {102,547} {94,271) - -
Net cash from financing

activities 120,453 348,673 - -
Net {dacrease)f increase in

cash and cash equivalents {3,0683,298) 3,785 262 {3,963} (164 ,248)
Cash and cash equivalents at '

keginning of financial year 6,229 457 2,454 505 14,039 178 287
Caeh and cash enuivalents at

end of financial year 20 3,166,661 8,228 857 10,078 14,033

The accompanying accounfing poficles and explanatory notes form an integral pant of the
financial sfatements. . 20




CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No., 445931 - )
{tncorporated in Malaysia}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

1.

1.1.

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Group and the Company are
consistent with those adopted in previous financial year unless ctherwise stated.

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company are prepared under the
histarical cost convention, other than as discloged in the notes to the financial
statements, and in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards
{"MFRSs") issued by Malaysian Accounting Standards Board, International Financizl
Reporting Standards {"IFRSs"} and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1985 in
Malzysia.

The financial statements are prepared in Ringoit Malaysia (KM) which is the
Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency.

Adaption of new and revised MFRSs

The following new and revised Standards and Interpretation have been adopted inthe
current year. Unlass otherwise disclosed, their adoption has had no material impact
oh the amounis reported in these financial statements.

. Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations {Amendments io
MFRS 11)

. Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to MFRS 101)
The main effect of the adoption of the above are summarisad below:

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations {(Amendments to MFRS
11) amends MFRS 11 such that the acquirer of an interest in a joint aperation in which
the activity constitutes a business, as defined in MFRS 3, is required to apply all of
the principles on business combinations accounting in MFRS 3 and other MFRSs with
the exception of those principles that conflict with the guidance in MFRS 11.
Accordingly, a joint operatar that is an acquirer of such an interest has to:

» measure most identifiable assets and liabilities at fair value;

. expense acquisition-related costs (other than debt or eguily issuance costs);

. recognise deferred taxes;

. recagnising any goodwill or bargain purchase gain,

» perform impairment tests for the cash generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated,

» disclose information required retevant for business combinations.
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CYMAD HOLDINGS BEERHAD

{Co. No. 445331 - 1))

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMEER 2016
1. Basis of preparation {continued)
1.1 Adoption of new and revised MFRSs {continued}

Accounting for Acguisitions of Interests in Joint Opserations {continued

The amendments apply to the acguisition of an interest in an existing joint operation
and also to the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation on its formation, unless
the formation of the joint operation coincides with the formation of the business.

This amendment was applied in the Group’s acquisition of GP Dynamic Venture Sdn
Ehd as highlighted in Note 17.

Disclosurs Initiative

Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to MFRS 101) rﬁade the foliowing changes:

{I)y  Materiglity. The amendments clarify that {1} information should not be cbscured
by aggregaiing or by providing immaterial information, {27 materiality
considerations apply to the all parts of the financial statements, and {3) even

-when a standard requires a specific disclosure, materiality considerations do

apply.

(il Statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The amendments (1) introduce a clarification that tha
list of line items to be presented in these statements can be disaggregated and
aggregated as relevant and additional guidance on subtotals in these
statements and (2) clarify that an entity's share of Other Comprehsnsive Income
(OCI} of equity-accounted associates and joint ventures should be presantad in
aggregate as single line items based on whether or not it wiill subsequentiy be
reclagsified to profit or loss.

(iiy -Notes. The amendments add additlonal examples of possibla ways of ordering
the notes ito clarify that understandability and comparsbility should be
considered when determining the order of the notes and to demonstrate that the
notes nesd not be presented in the arder so far listed in paragraph 114 of MFRS
101. The |ASE also removed guidance and examplas with regard to the
identification of significant accounting policies that were perceived as being
potentially unhelpful.

The adoption of this amendment has resulted in significantly reducesd disclosures in
certain sactions of the financial statements of the Group and the Company.

1.2 Standards Issued but not yet sffective

The Group and the Company has not adopted the fullﬂwmg standards and
interprefations that have been issued but not yet effective: _

Effective for annual psriods commencing on or after 1 January 2017

. Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses (Amendments to
MFRS 112}
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CYMAQ HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445931 - U)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

1. Basis of preparation {continued)

1.2 Standards Issued but not yet effective (continued)

Effective for annual periods commencing on cr after 1 January 2018

MFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014;

MFRS 15, Revenue fraom Contracts with Customers

Effective for annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2019

MFRE 18, Leases

A brief description on the Amendments to MFRSs and new MFRSs above that have
been issued is set out below:

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses (Amendments to MFRS

112)

The amendments clarify the following aspects:

(i)

(ii)

(iii}

{iv)

Unrealised losses on debt instruments measured at fair value and measured at
cost for tax purpeses give rise to a deductible temporary difference regardless
of whethar the debt instrumant's holder expects to recaover the carrying amount
of the debt instrument by sale or by use.

The carrying amount of an asset does not limit the estimation of probabla future
taxable grofits,

Eslimatas for future taxable profits exclude tax deductions resulting from the
reversal of deductible temporary differences.

An entity assesses a deferred tax asset in combination with cther defarrad tax
assets. Where tax law restricts the utilisation of tax lossas, an entity would
asse535 a defarrad tax asset in combination with other deferred tax assets of the
same type.

As transition relisf, an entity may recognise the change in the opening equity of the
earltest comparative period in opening retained earings on initial application without
allecating the change hetween cpening retained earings and other components of
aquity. The Board has not added additional transition relief for first-time adopters.

The Group has not yet assessed the impact of these amendments.
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445831 - U)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

1. Basis of preparation (continued)

1.2 Standards issued but not yet effective (continuad)

MFRS 9, Financisl Instruments

In November 2014, MASB issued the final version of MFRS 9 Financial Instruments
which reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces MFRS 139
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of
MFRE 9. MFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but comparative
information is not compulsery. The standard introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities, impairment of
financial assets and hedge accounting.

(i)

{ii)

Classification and measurement

MFRS 8 has Two {2) measurement categories — amortised cost and fair value,
All equity instruments are measured at fair value. A debt instrument is measured
at amorised cost only if the entity is holding it to collect contractual cash flows
and the cash fiows represent principal and interest. For financial liabilitles, tha
standard retains most of the MFRS 139 requirements. These include amortised
cost accounting for most financial liabilities, with bifurcation of embedded
derivatives. The main change is that, in cases where the fair value option is
takan for financial liabilities, the fair valle change due to an antity's own cradit
risk is recorded in other comprehensive income rather than the statement of
profit or loss, unless this creates an accounting mismatch.

Impairment

The impairment requirements apply to financial assets measured at amortised
cost and fair value through other comprehensive income, (ease receivables and
certain toan commitments as well as financial guarantes contracts. At initial
recognition, allowance for impairment is required for expected credit losses
("ECL.") resuiting from default events that are possible within the next Twelve
(12} monthg {"12 month ECL"). In the event of a significant increase in credit
risk, allowance for impalrment is required for ECL resulting from all possible
default events over the expected life of the financial instrument. The assessment
of whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition is
performed for each reporling period by considering the prebability of default
accurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument. The assessment of
credit risk, as well as the estimation of ECL, are required to be unblased,
probability-weighted and should incorporate al! available information which is
relevant to the assessment, including information about past events, current
conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts of future events and
economic conditicns at the reperting date. In addition, tha estimation of ECL
should also take into account the time value of money.




CYMAOQ HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445931 - L
{incorparated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

1. Basis of preparation {continued)

1.2 Standards issued but not yet effectlve {continued)

MFRS 8. Financial [nstruments (continued)

{ii)

impairment {continued)

MFRS 9 establishes a more principle-based approach to hedge accounting and
addresses inconsistencies and weaknesses in the current modal in MFRS 139,
The general hedge accounting requirements aim to simplify hedge accounting,
creating a stronger link between hedge accounting and risk management
strategy and permitting hedge accounting to be applied to a greater variety of
hedging instruments and risks. The standard does not explicitly address macre
hedge accounting, which is being considerad in a separate project.

MFES & introduces sign'ificant changes in the way the Group accounts for
financial instruments. Due to the complexity of the standard and its
requirements, the financial effects of its adoption are still being assessed by the
Group.

MFRE 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of MFRS 15 is that an entity will recognise revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to custermers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. This core principle is delivered in a five-step model framework;

Identify the contract{s) with a customer
Identify the performance abligations in the contract
Determine the transaction price

Allocate the transaction price to the performance abligations in the contract

~ Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Application of this guidance will depend on the facts and circurnstances present in a
contract with a customer and will require the exarcise of judgment.

Due to the complexity of thé standard and i{s requirements, the financial effects of its
adoption are still being assessad by the Group.
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD

{Co. No. 445931 - 1)

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
1. Basis of preparation (continued}

1.2 Btandards issued but not yet effective {continuad)

MFRS 16, Leases

Under MFRS 16 a lesses recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The
right-of-use asset is treated similarly to other non-financial asests and depreciated
accordingly and the liability accrues interest. This wili typlcally produce a front-loaded
axpense profile {whereas cperating leases under MFRS 117 would typically have had
siraighi-line expenses) as an assumed linear depreciation of the right-of-use asset
and the decreasing interest on the liability will lead to an overall decrease of expense
over the reparting period.

The lease ligbility is initially measured at the present value of the |sase payments
payable over tha lease tarm, discountad at the rate implicit in the lease if that can be
readlly determingd. if that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use their
incremental borrowing rate.

As with MFRS 16's predecessor, MFRS 117, lessors classify leases as operating or
finance in nature. A lease |s classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset, Otherwise a
lzase is classified as an operating lease.

For finance leases a lessor recognises finance income over the lease term, based on
a pattern reflacting a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment. A lessor
recognises operating lease payments as income on a straight-line basis or, if more
representative of the pattern in which benefit from use of the underlying asset is
diminished, another systematic basis.

Recognition exemptions: Instead of applying the recognition requirements of MFRS
16 described above, a lesses may elect to account for lease payments as an expensze
on a straight-line basis over the [ease term or another systematic basis for the
following two types of leases:

. leases with a lease term of Twelve (12) months or less and containing ne
purchase options — this election is made by class of underlying assat; and

» leases where the underlying asset has a low value when new {such as personal
computers or small items of office furniture) — this election can be made on a
leage-by-leage basis.

Dua to the complexity of the standard and its requirements, the financial effects of its
adoption are still being assessed by the Group.
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CYMAQ HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445931 - )
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

2,

2.1

2.2

Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the repored amounis of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingant liabilities
at the reporting date. Howaver, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material adjusiment to the carrying
amount of the asset or liability affected in the future periods.

Judgements made in applying accounting policies

In the pracess of applying Group's accounting policies, managemesnt has made the
following judgement, apart from those involving estimations, which could have a
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financtal statements:

fa) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses and unabsorbed
capital allowances to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
he available against which the |psses and capital allowances can be utilised.

However due to the history of losses of the Group, it is management's
judgement that it is not yet probable that fulure taxable profits will be available
against which the losses and capital allowances can be utilised, and accordingly
have not recognised the deferred tax assets of the Group as disclosad in Note
23 to the financial statements.

Key sourcaes of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing & material
adjustment te the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
yeal are discussed below:

fa) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines at each reporting date whethar a trigger for an
impairmant review exist. If an impairment review is necessary, the Directors
estimates the recoverable account of the asset by reference to the higher of
value in use ("VIU") being the net present value of future cash flows expected
to be generated by the assel, and fair value less costs to dispose ("FVLCDY). In
estimating this recoverable amounts, the Directors use independent
professional valuars and normally based on the FYLCD.

2V




CYMAQ HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445931 - U}
{incerporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER. 2016

2. Significant accounting judgments and estimates {continued)

2.2  Key sources of estimation uncertainty {continued)

{b}

(c)

)

Usatul lives of plant and egquipment

The cost of plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated economic useful lives. Management estimates the useful lives
of these plant and equipment to be within Five (5) to Ten (10) years. These are
commen life expectancies applied in the wood product industry. Changes in the
expected level of usage and technological developmeants could impact the
economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore, future
depreciation charges could be revised. The carrying amount of the Group's plant
and equipment at the reparting date is disclosed in Note 14,

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assessas at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset is impaired. To determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment, the Group considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial dlﬂ‘lculﬂes of the debtor and
default or significant delays in payments.

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future
cash flows are estimated based on historical loss experience for assets with
similar credit risk characteristics. The carrying amount of the Group's loans and
receivable at the reporting date is disclosed in Note 27,

Income taxes

There are ceriain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax
determination may be different from the initial estimate. The Group and the
Company recognises tax lishilities based on its understanding of the prevailing
tax laws and estimates of whether such taxes will be due in the ordinary course
of business. Where the final cutcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recognised, such difference will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which such determination is magle.




CYMAQ HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445831 - U)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

3.
31

Significant accounting policiss
Consolidation and investments in associates and joint arrangements

Basis of conaolidation

These financial statements are the consclidated financial statements of Cymao
Holdings Berhad and entities controlied by it and its subsidiaries ("the Group™).

Control is achieved when the investar:
»  has power over the investes;

. is exposed or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the
investes; and

*  has the ahility to use its powar to affect its returns.

If facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
glements of control listed above, the investor shall reassess whether it controls the
investee.

An investor can have power over an investee even if it holds less than a majority of
the veting righte of an investee. All facts and circumstances are considered in
assessing whether or not vating rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, for
axample, through:

. contraciual arrangements with other vote holders,

v rights from other contractual arrangaments that indicate that the company has
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investes,

. the size of the company’'s holding of voting rights relative to the size and
dispersion of heldings of other vote helders; or -

. potential voting rights held by the company that are substantive.
Invastment in subsidlarles

Consclidation of a subsldiary begins from the date the investor gains control of an
investee and ceases when the investor loses control of an investee.

The purchase, or acquisition, maethod of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cosgt of the acquisition is measured as
the fair value of assets transferred, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
at the date of exchange.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.

20




CYMADO HOLDINGS BEFHAD
{Co. No. 445931 - U}
{Incorporated in Malaysig)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

3.
3.1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Consolidation and Investments in associates and |oint arrangements
{continued)

MNon-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented in the consclidated statemsnt
of financial position separatelr from the equity attributable to equity owners of the
parent company, Mon-controlling shareholders’ inferest may initially be measured
gither at fair value or at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of the
fair valus of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis
is made on each acquisition individually. Subséquent to acquisition, the carrying
amount of non-controlling interesis is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in ecr|uity.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controliing interests even if this
results in the non-controlling intaerests having a deficit balance.

Acquigitions or disposals of non-controlling interests which do not affect the parent
company's control of the subsidiary are accounted for as transactions with equity
holders. Any difference between the fair value of the amount paid or received and the
change in non-controlling interests is recognised directly in equity.

When the Group ceasss to have control of a subsidiary, any retained interest in the
entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when controi is lost with the
adjustment belng recognised in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal of
the controlling interest. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (this may mean that these
amounts are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified by applicable MFRS). :

Investmentin associates

An associate is an entity ovar which the Group has significant influence and that is
neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint contro! over those policies. The investment in an associate is initially
recognised at cost and adjusted for the Group's share of In the net assets of the
investee after the date of acguisition, and for any impairment in value {equity method),
except when the investment is classified as held-for-sele in accordance with MFRS 5
Non-current assets held-for-sale and discontinued cperations. If the Group’s share of
losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.

Joint vanture

A Joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have jeint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. The investment n a
joint venture is initially recognised at cost and adjusted for the Group's share of in the
nat assets of the investee after the date of acquisition, and for any impairment in value
(equity method), except when the investment is classified as heald-for-sale in
accordance with MFRS 5 Non-current assets held-for-sale and discontinusd
operations. If the Group's share of lpsses of a |oint venture equals or exceeds its
Interest in the joint venture, the Group discontinuas recognlsing its share of further
0SE8S. .

30




CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445831 - U)
fIncorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 21 DECEMBER 2016

3.
3.1

3.2

Significant accounting policles {continued}

Consolidation and investments in associates and joint arrangements
{continued)

When the Group loses joint control, it proportionately reclassifies the relaied items
which were previously accumuiated in equity through other comprehensive income to
profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. H an investment remains, it is measured

to fair value, with the fair valie adjustment being recognised in profit or loss as part of
the gain or loss on disposal,

Jaint oparation

A joint operation is a jeint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of
the arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to
the arrangement.

The Group racognizes the following in relation to its Interests in a joint operation:

. its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

. its liahilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;

» its revenue from the sale of its share of the ocutput arising fraom the joint
operation,

. its share of the revenue from the sale of the cutput by the joint oparation; and

. its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions comprises the excess of the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration transferred, the fair value of any previously held interests, and the
recognised value of the nen-controlling interest in the acquiree over the net of the
acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
Goodwill is carrled at cost less accurmulated impairment losses, Goodwill is tested for

impairment annually. Gains and losses on the dispasal of an entity include the carrying
arnount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

3.
3.3

3.4

3.5

Slgnificant accounting pelicies {continued)
Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration for acquisition is measured at the fair values of assets given, liahilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in order to abtain
control of the acquiree {at the date of exchanga). Costs incurrad in connection with
the acquisition are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Where a business
combination ie achieved in stages, previously held interests in the acquiree are re-
measured to fair vaiue at the acquisition date (date the Group abtains control) and the
resufting gain or loss, is recognised in profit or loss. Adjustments are made to fair
values to bring the accounting policies of acquired businesses inte alignment with
those of the Group. The costs of integrating and reorganising acquired businesses ars
charged to the post acguisition profit or loss.

If the initial accounting is incomplete at the reporting date, provisional amounts are
recerded. These amounts are subsequently adjusted during the measuyrement period,
or additional assets or llabilities are recognised when new information about its
existence is obtained during this period.

Nen-measurement period adjustments to contingent consideration{s) classified as
&quity are not remeasured. Non-measurement period adjustments to other contingent
considerations are remeasured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is provided to write off the cost, less
residual value, on a straight ling basis over the estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 2% - 10%
Renovation 10%
Plant and machinery 10%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture, fixtures and eguipment 20%

Leasehold lands are amortised over the remaining period of the lease. Freehold land
has unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated. Assets under construction
are not depreciated as these assets are not yet available for use.

Residual values, remaining useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed
annhually and adjusted if appropriate.

Galns or losses on disposal are included in profit or loss.
Land use rights
Land uss rights are initlally measured at cost. Following initial recognition, land use

rights are measured &t cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. The land use rights are amortised over their (sase terms.

a2




CYMAC HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445031 - L))
{Incorparated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

3.

36

3.7

Signiflcant accounting policies {(continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses annually whether there is any indication that any of its assets
have been impaired. |f such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated and compared to its carrying value. Where it is impossible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest cash genarating unit to which the asset is allocated.

If the recoverable amcunt of an asset (or cash gensrating unit) is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, an impairment ioss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is recognised as revaluation decraase.

For goodwill, intangible assats that have an indefinite life, and intangible assets not
yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated annually and at the end of
each reporting period if there is an indication of impairment.

Financial ingtruments

The Group classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial
recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Financial instruments
are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus transactions costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instrument, except
for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at
fair value, excluding transaction costs {which is recognised In profit or loss).

Equity instruments for which fair value is not determinable, are measured at cost and
are classified as availahle-for-sale financial assets.

Financial assets are deracognised whan the rights to receive cash flows from the
assets have expired or have been transferred and the Gruup has transferred
substantially all risk and rewards of ownarship.

Availabla-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets comprise equity investmenis. Subseguent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are stated at fair value. Movements in
fair values are taken dirgctly to equity, with the exception of impairment losses and -
foreign exchange gains or losses which are recognised in profit or loss. Fair values
are based on prices quoted In an active market if such a market is available. If an
active market is not available, the Group establishes the fair value of financial
instruments by using a valuaticn technique, usually discounted cash flow analysis.
When an investment is disposed of, any cumulative gains and losses previously
recagnised in equity are recognisad in profit or loss. Dividends are recognised in profit
or loss when the right to recalva payments is gstablished.
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NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

3.
3.7

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments {continued)
Availablefor-sale flnancial assets (continued)

Investments in equity instruments whose fair values cannot be reliably measured are
measured at cost iess impairment loss.

Financial assets at fair vatue thraugh [:irafit and loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss include financial assets held for
trading and financial assats designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the short-term. Financial assets at fair vaiue
through profit and loss comprise derivative financial instruments, namely interest rate
swaps and forward exchange comtracts. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets at fair value through profit and loss are stated at fair value. Movements in fair
values are recognised in profit or loss, unless they refate to derivatives designated
and effective as hedging instruments, in which event the timing of the recognition in
nrofit or loss depends on the nature of the-hedging relationship.

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments in fair value hedges
of recognised assets and liabilities and firm commitmeants, and in cash fiow hedges of
highly probable forecast transactions and foreign currency risks relating to firm
commitments.

The effective portion of fluctuations in the fair vaiue of interest rafe swaps used to
hedge interest rate risk and that qualify as fair value hedges are recognised together
with finance costs. The Ineffective portion of the gain or loss is recognised in other
axpenses or other incoma.

Fluctuations in the fair value of forward exchangs contracts used to hedge currency
risk of future cash flows, and the fair value of foreign currency monetary items on the
statement of financial position, are recognised directly in other expenses or other
income. This policy has been adopted as the relationship between the forward
exchange contracts and the item being hedged does not mest certain conditions in
order to gualify as a hedging relationship.

Trade recelvahbles

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are
subseqguently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method,
less provision for impairment. Trade receivables are reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Interest on overdue trade
receivables is recognised as it accrues.

Cash and cash equlvalents

Cash eguivalents comprise short-term, highly liguid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value. An investment with a maturity of Three (3} months or less is
normally classified as heing short-term. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowing
in currant liabilities.
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3.
3.7

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financlal instruments (continued)
Trade payables

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measurad
at amartised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Bank overdrafts and interest-hearing borrowings

Bank overdrafts and interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The effactive interest method is a mathod of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant pericd. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the value of proceeds
received, net of costs directly attributable to the issue of the instruments.

Treasury shares

When shares of the Company, that have not been cancelled, recognised as equity are
reacquired, the amount of consideration paid is recognised directly in equity.
Reacquired shares are classified as treasury shares and presented as a deduction
from total aquity.

No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issua oOf
cancellation of treasury shares. When treasury shares are reissued by resale, the
difference betwsen the sales consideration and the carrying amount is recognised in
share premium.

Compound instruments

At the issue date, the fair value of the liability compaonent of a compound instrument
is estimated using the market interest rate for a similar non-convertible instrument.
This amount is recorded as a liability at amortised cost using the effective interest
method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument's redemption date.

" The equity componsnt is determined as the difference of the amaount of the liability

componant from the fair value of the instrument. This is recognised in equity, net of
income tax effects, and is not subsequently re-measured.

Impairment of financial assals

- All financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for indicators of

impairment at each reporting date.
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3.

4.7

38

3.9

Significant accounting policies {continued}
Financlal Instruments {continued)
Offsetting flnancial Instruments

Financial agsets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement
of financial pasition when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settla the liabillty simultaneously.

Financlal guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
measured at the higher of (a) the amount determined in accordance with MFRS 137,
Provigions, Contingent Liahilitiss and Contingent Assets, and (b) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with MFRS 118.

Inventories

Inventories are valued ai the lower of cost and net realisable value on a weighted
average basis. Cost comprises purchase cost of goods, direct labour and those
overheads related to manufacture and distribution based on normal activity levels.

Employee heneflts
Short term henefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised ags an
expense in the financial year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees of the Group. Short term accurmulating compensated absences such as
paid annual leave are racognised when services are rendered by employees that
increase their antittement to future compensated absences, and short term non-
accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave are recognised when the
absences ocour.

Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into separate entities or funds and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further contributions if any of the funds do not held
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee services in the
current and preceding financial years. Such contributions are recognised as an
expense in the profit or loss as incurred.

The Group make contributions to the Employees Provident Fund in Malaysia, a
dafined contribution pansion scheme. Contributions to defined contributlon pension
scheme are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related service is
performed.
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3.

3.10

3.11

312

Significant accounting policies {continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured
at tha fair value of considaration recaived or receivable.

Sale of goods - Revenue from sale of goods is recognised net of taxes and upon
transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer. Revenue is not
recognised to the extent where there are significant uncetainties regarding recovery
of the consideration due, associated costs or the possible return of goods.

Rendering of services - Revenue from provision of barge hiring income is recognised
when the services are perfoarmed.

Rental income - Rental Income from operating leases is recognised in income on a
straight-line hasis over the lease term.

Interest income - Interest revenue is recognised in the period in which interest is
earngd. The amount of revenus is measured using the effective interest rate method.

Beorrowings costs

Baorrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Taxatlon

Income {ax for tha period is based on the taxable income for the year. Taxable Income
differs from profit as reported in the staterment of comprehensive income for the period
as there are some items which may never be taxable or deductible for tax and other
items which may be deductible or taxable in other periods, Income tax for the period
is calculated using the current ruling tax rate.

Deferred tax is tha future tax consequences of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities shown on the statement of
financial position, Deferred tax assets and liahilities are not recognised if they arise in
the following situatfons: the initial recegnition of goodwill; or the initial recognition of
assels and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit. The ameount of
deferred tax provided s based on the expected manner of recovery or settlement of
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially
anacted at thy statarmant of financial position date.
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3.
312

3113

3.14

Significant accounting policies {continued)
Taxatlon {contlnued)

The Group does not recognise deferred tax liabilitiss, or deferred tax assets, on
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, joint venturas and
associates where the parent company is able to contral of the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is not considered probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxakle profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised. The carrying
amount of the deferred tax asseis are reviewed at each statement of financial position
date and reduced to the extent that it is no lunger probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Provisigns

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructiva) as a result of a past event, it ig probable that the Group will be requirad
to settle the abligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
requirad to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting peried, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Forefgn currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respeclive functionsl
currencies of the entities within the Group. Monstary items deneminated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the exchange rates applying at the reporting date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates pravailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
MNon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
ara not retranslated, .

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
axcapt for:

+  exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings which are regarded as
adjustments to interest costs, where those interest costs qualify for capitalisation
to assets under construction;

* exchange differences on transactions entered into to hedge foreign currency
risks (agsuming all hedge accounting tests are met); and

. axchange differences on loans to or from a foreign oparation for which
gettiement is neither planned nor likely to ocour and therefore forms pant of the
net investmeant in the foreign oFeration, which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive inceme and reclassified from equity to profit or less on dispasal
or partial disposal of the net investment. :
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3.
3.15

Significant accounting policies {continued}
Fair value measurement

Fair valug is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction hetween market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the assumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liakility takes place sither:

. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

. tn the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measurad using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liakility, assuming that markst
participants act in their economic best interast.

The measurement of a non-financial asset at fair value takes into account & market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asest in its
highest and best usea.

" The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and

for which sufficient data is available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inpuis.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclesed in the financial
staternents are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

. Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical
assats or liabilities

» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair valus measuremant is directly or indirectly observable

» Leval 3 — Valuation technigques for which the lowest leve! in;ﬁut that is significant
to the fair value measuremant is unobservable

For ageets and liabilities that are recognised In the financial statements on a recurring
basig, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred hetween levsls in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the falr value measurement as a whole) at the end of each repering
period.
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4. Revenue

Sale of goods
Block board
Plywood
Others

Services rendsred
Barge hiring income

£. Interest income

Interest income from:

Fixed deposits

6. Otherincome

Gain on disposal of

- Property, plant and agulpment

- Materials

Gain on fareign exchange

- Realised

Liahilities no langer in existanca
written back

Miscellanaous

Rental income

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM R RM RM
43 522,143 46,103,258 - -
71,822 370 84,744,055 - -
134,502 212,757 S e -
115,279,015 131,080,070 - -
261,793 589,150 - -
118,560,808 131,848,220 - -
Group
2016 2018
RM RM
104,372 3,096
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM RN RM RM
68, 781 - - -
- 2,850 - -
12,853 807,440 - 20,184
£33 264,600 5313 264 800
. B84 286 343,175 - -
- 48,000 - -
1,371,213 1,553,765 5313 284 784
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7. Other expenses

Group Company
2016 2045 2016 2016
R RM RM RN
Impairment loss
- Bad debts written off 5,726 16,380 - 18,380
Loss on damaged of materials 153,263 - - -
Loss on dispoesal of materials 22T 152 207 287 - -
Others B8.741 126,505 - -
474 882 350,182 - 16,380
8. Finance costs
Group Company
2016 2ms 2016 2015
RN RM RM RV
Bankers' acceptance 289,475 211,236 - -
Bank overdraft 19,348 & 980 - -
Foreigh currency trade [oan - 1,699 - -
Term laans 88,481 86 8e3 - -
397,304 306,808 - -
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9.

Loss before taxation

Loss before taxation is
arrived &t after charging/
{crediting):

Allowance for doubthul debts

Allowance for slow moving
invantories

Amottisation of land use
rights (Note 15}

Auditors' remuneration

- Glatutary audit
- Current year
- Under provision in prior

year

- Other sarvices

Bad debis written off

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment {Note
14}

Employee bensfits expense
{Note 10

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of materials

Loss on foreign exchange

- Realised

MNan-executive Directors’
remuneration (Note 11}

Rental of factary

Rental of logyard

Rental of premises

Group

2016
RM

B4 BAT

16,152
127,000

47 110
5726
4,810,623
18,323,087

(668,761)
227 152

71.807

98,000
19,300
254,350
33,525

Company
2015 2016 2015
RM RM RM

227,005 - -
53,230 - -
123,000 42 000 38,000
8,500 - 5,000
36,042 37,000 8,000
16,330 - 16,390
7,442 708 10,491 20,581
18,386 868 48 000 84,000
207 287 - -
436,702 - -
75,000 a5,000 75,000
55,000 - “
249400 - -
18,500 - -
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10. Employee benefits expense

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM RM RM RM
Salaries and wages 18,015,075 185,110,823 48,000 84,000

Contributions to defined

sontribution plan 287,740 250,122 - -
Social security contributions 40,272 35,921 - -
18,323 087 18,386,966 48,000 84,000

Included in employee benefits expense of the Group and of the Company are
Executive Directors’ remuneration amounting to RM1,727 600 (2015: RM2,198,000)
and RiM48,000 (2015: RM84,000) respectively as further disclosed in Note 11 to the
financial statements,

11. Directors’ remuneration

The details of remuneration received and receivable by Directers of the Group and of
the Company during the financial year are as follows:

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM RN RN RM
Executive Directors
- Fee 43,000 &4,000 48 000 24,000
- Salaries and cther
emeluments 1678000 - 2114000 - -
1,727,000 2,188,000 48 000 24,000
Mon-executive Diractors
- Fee 96,000 75,000 88,000 76,000
Total Directors’ remuneration 1,823,000 2,273,000 144 Q00 158,000

The number of Directors of the Company whose total remuneration during the financizl
year fell within the following bands is analysed below.

Mumber of Directors

2018 2015
Executive Direclors:
Below RM200,000
RM250 001 = RM300,000
RM300,001 - RME00,000
RMG00.001 - RMEED,000
RMG50.001 — RM700,000

[ N S §

1
2
1

Non-executive Directors:
Below RMS50,000 2 3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

12. Income tax expense

Major comiponents of income tax expense

Current taxation

Deferred (ax
Relating to the origination
and reversal of temporary
diffarences (Note 23)

COwer provision in grior years
- Currant taxation

Group Company
2016 2015 2018 2015 -
RM RM RM RM
127 682 763,741 -
(145 584) 70.512 - -
(17,912) 840,253 - -
(161,326} {5,487 - -
{179,238) 834,756 - -

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to loss before taxation at the
statutory income tax rate to income tax expense at the effective income tax rate of the
Group and the Company is as follows:

Loss before taxation

Taxation at Malaysien statutory

tax rate of 24% [2015: 25%)

Adjustments:
Mon-tax deductible expenses
Mon-taxable income
Double deduction expenses
Deferred tax assats not
recagnised

Cwver provision in prior years
- Currant taxation

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM RM RN RM

__{7,852,098) {1,234 035) {483,861} (257 324}
{1,836,505) {308 508y {118,128} {64,331}
343,491 1,969,627 116,128 84,331
{134,325) - - -
{396,03%) {287 694) - -
2,005,466 (533,171) - -

{17,812) 840,253 -
£161,326) {5,487} - -

(179,238) Bad 756 -
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13.
13.1

13.2

Loss per share
Baslc

Basic loss per share amounts are calcutated by dividing loss for the year, net of tax,
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year.

Group
2016 2015
Loss net of tax attributable to owners of the Company {EM) (7472 858} (2,068,781
Weighted average number of arcinary
shares in issue 73535600 73535500
Baszic loss per shara (Sen) {10.16) {2.814

Diluted

The Graup has no potential ordinary shares inissue as at reporting date and therefore
diluted loss per share has not been presented.
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CYMAQ HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445831 - L)
incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 21 DECEMBER 2016

14, Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Furnlture,
fittings and
equignment Renovation Total
RM RM RM
Caompany
2016
Cost
At 1 Jarwary 2016/ 31 December 2016 20,544 104 807 125,851
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2016 20,844 83 824 104,868
Charge for the financial year - 10,481 10,481
At 31 December 2016 L 20,944 94415 115,358
Met hook value
Al 31 December 2016 - 10,492 10,492
2015
Cost
At 1 January 2015/ 31 December 2015 20,944 104,807 125,851
Accumulatad depraciation
At 1 January 2018 20,844 62,843 83,887
Charge for the financial year - 20,581 20,981
At 31 December 2015 20,8944 83,524 104 888
Net hook value

At 31 Decembar 2015 - 20,083 20,882

Freehold land, leasehold land and building of the Groug amounting to R 11,603,404
2015: RM11,854,406) are mortgaged to secured bank horrowing as stated in Note
1 to the financial statements.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipmant during the financial yaaiwaa taken up
in the financial statements as follows:

Group Company
2018 2015 2016 2015
RM RM RM RM
Regcognised in profit or loss
[MNote 9
- Cost of sales 4,176,353 5,803,388 - -
- Adminisirative expensas 807 625 - 605,067 0,491 20,981
- Selling expenses 23,645 44,343 - -
4810623 7,442 756 10,491 20,981

49




CYMAQ HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445931 - U}
{Incarparated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

15. Land use rights

Group

2018 2015

RM RM
Cost
At 1 danuary’31 December 1,337,376 1,337 378
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 428 408 375178
Charge for the financial year (Note &) 18,152 53,230
At 31 December _ . A4.558 428406
Net book valug
At 31 December 292,818 808,970

The land uze rights are not transferable and will expire on 31 December 2033,

16. Investments in subsidiaries

Company

2016 2015

RM RM
-ost
Ungucted shares, at cost
At 1 January/31 Deacembar 82 152 888 92,152,988
Accumulated Impalrment losses
At 1 January/31 December {13,088,054) {13,086,051)
Net carrying amount 78,086 937 79,068,937
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD

(Co. No. 445931 - L)

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 34 DECEMBER 2016

16. Investments in subsidiaries {continued)

All of the subsidiaries held by the Company are incorporated in Malaysia, details are

as follows:

Name of
subsldiarles

Cymao Plywood
Sdn. Bhd.

Billion Apex
Sdn. Bhd.

Inovwood
Sdn. Bhd.

Syabas Mujur
Sdn. Bhd.

Poly-Ply Industries
Sdn. Bhd.

Principal activities

Manufactwring and sele of veneer,
plywoad and decorative plywood and
provision of barge hiring services

Dormant

Manufacturing and sale of veneer,
plywood and dacorative plywood
Bales and exbraclion of log timber
operations. Operations ternpararily

ceased,

Manufacturing of polyester-overlald
plywood :

Principal
place of
business

Sandakan

Sandakan

Sandakan

Sandakan

Klang

17. Investments accounted for using the equity method

Name

Joint veniure
GP Dynamic

Wenture Sdn.
Bhd.

Principal activities

Producer of veneer, plywood and
sawn imber.

Principal
plage of
businass

Kuals
Terengganu

Proportion of

ownership
interest
2016 2018
Yo e
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Proportion of
ownership
" Intarest

2016

%

40

2015

%

B




CYMAC HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445931 - )
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES 7O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

17. Investments accounted for using the equity method (continued}

Summarised financial infformation in respect of the Group’s material joint venture is
set below.

Tha summarisad financial information below represents amounts shown in the joint
venture’s financial statements.

Joint Venture GP Dynamic
Venture Sdn, Bhd.

2018 2015
RM RM

Current assats 578,488 -
MNan-currant assets 693,241 -
Current liabilities {88,318} -
Non-current liabilities {83,014} -
The folfowing amounts have been included in fhe amounts
above .
Cash and cash equivalents 46,128 -
Current financial liabillties {22 644} -
Non-current financial liabilities {83,014} -
Revenue - -
Less for the financial year {504 645) -
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - -
The falflowing amounts heave besn includsd in the amoumts
above
Depreciation {21,284} ’ -
Interest income 11,853 -

Interest expenss {947) -
Income tax axpenss -

Dividend received from the joint venture during the financial
yaar - -

Reconeiliation of the summarised financial information to tha carrying amount of the
interest in the joint venture recognised in the Group's financial statements.

Joint Venture GP Dynamic
Venture Sdn. Bhd,

2016 2015

RM RM
Met assets of the jeint venture 1,100,407 -
Proportion of the Group's ownarship inlersst in the joint
vanture 40°% -
Carrying amaount of the Group's interest in the joint venture 440,163 -

There are no contingent liabilities or capital commitmants related to the Group's
investment in the joint venture,
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Ca. No. 445931 - U)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

18. Trade and other receivables

Current

Trade receivahles

Third parties

Allowance for doubtful debts

Other recelvables

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Deposits for log supplies
Prepayments

Staff advances

Sundry deposits

Sundry receivables

Allowance for doubtful debts

Total

Non-gurrent

Other receivahles

Deposits for acquisition of
machinaries

Total {current and non-
currant}

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,

daemand.

18.1 Trads receivables

Group Company
2018 2015 2018 2015
RM RM RM RM
17,599,324 17 465,027 - -
{42 569} {42,569) - -
17,568,766 17,422 458 - -
- - 11,080,381 11,180,391
631,737 4,604,579 - -
998,180 1,373,873 6,313 15,431
211,368 4,849 - -
1,678,245 1,885,726 - -
2,503,778 1,525,748 - -
6,025,009 9375376 11,086,704 11,185,822
{184,887} (212,452} - -
5840122 9162,823 11,088,704 11,195 822
23,396,877 26585381 11,086,704 11,195 822
Group Company
2018 2015 2018 2015
RM RM RM RM
1,647,233 - -
23,386,877 28232614 11,086,704 11,185 822

intersst free and repayable on

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the normal credit terms granted by the
Group are 30 to 60 days (2015: 45 to 60 days). They are recognised at their urlglnal
invoice amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition.
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445931 - L)
{Incorparated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

18. Trade and other receivables (continued)
18.1. Trade receivables {continued)

Ageing analysis of trade recaivables

The ageing anaiysis of the Group's trade receivables as at the reporting date is as

follows:
: Individual Carrying
Gross amount Impalrmant value
RM RN RM
Group
2016
teither past due nor impaired 9463 597 - 9,453,597
Past due
Less than B0 days 8,782 8655 - 6,782,656
Betweaen 61 to 120 days 1,292 741 - -1,202,741
Between 121 fo 385 days 17,121 - 17,121
More than 385 days 43 209 {42,569} &40
8,136 727 {42.569) 8,003,158
17 508,324 {42,569} 17 586,755
Indlviduat
Grose amount Impalrment Carrying value
RM RM
2015
Meither past due nor impaired 7,314 767 - 7.314 767
Past due
Less than 0 days 4,224 776 - 4,224 776
Between 61 to 120 days 5,882235 - 5,882,235
Between 1271 fo 365 days - - -
More than 366 days 43248 {42 569) 680
10,150.260 {42,568) 10,107,881
17,465 027 {42 569) 17,422,458




CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 4459831 - U)
fincorporated in Malaysia}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

18. Trade and other receivables (continued)
18.1. Trade receivables {continued)

Receivables that are neither past dug nor impaired

Trade receivables that are neither past due ner impaired are creditworthy recaivables
with good payment records with the Group. None of the Group’s trade receivables that
are neither past due nor impaired have been renegotiated during the financial year.

Recsivablas that ara past dus but not impaired

The Group has trade receivables amounting to RM8,093,158 (2015: RM10,107,681)
that are past duz but not impaired at the reporting date. These balances are
unsecured in nature.

18.2. Other receivables

Ageing analysis of ather receivables

The ageing analysis of the Group's cther receivables as at the reporting date is as

follows:
Indlvidual Carrying
Gross amount  Impalrment value
RM R RM
Group
2016
Meither past due nor impaired 2,791 612 - 2791612
Fast dus
Less than 60 days 1,454 403 - 1,454,403
Betwesn €1 {0 120 days 320 482 - 328 482
Betwean 121 to 365 days 352 916 - 352016
More than 365 days 1,087 595 {184 887) 212,708
3,233,397 {184.887) 3,048,510
6,025,000 {(184,887) 5 840,122
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CYMAC HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445831 - U}
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
18. Trade and other receivables {continued) -

18.2. Other receivables {continued)

Agaeing analysis of othar recaivables fcontinuad)

Indlvidual
Gross amount Impairment Carrying value
RM R RN
2015

Meither past due nor impaired 4,300 848 - 4,308 849

Fazt due
Less than 60 days 1,033,575 - 1,033,575
Between 61 to 120 days 008,834 - 408,838
Betwaen 121 to 365 days 1,733,081 - 1,733,081
More than 365 days 1,380,001 (212 452 1,177,579
5085528 (212 452) 4862074
9,375,375 {212,452) 9,162,923

18.3 Allowance for doubtful debts

The Group movement of the allowance for doubtful debts used to record the
impairment are as folows.

Group Company
2016 2015 . 2018 2015
RM RM RM RM

Allowance for doubtful debts for

trade racelvables:
At 1 January 42 565 42 589 - _ -
Charge tor the financial year -
Reversal during the financlal year - - “ -

42,568 42,669 - -

Allowance for doubtful debts for
other receivables:

At 1 January 212 452 212,452 - -
Charge for the financial year 84,887 - - -
Reversal during the financial year {112 452} - - -

184,887 212,452 - .

227,456 265,021 - -
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CYMAQ HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445831 - U}
fIncorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

18. Trade and other receivables (continued)

18.3 Allowance for doubtful debts {continued)

Trade and other receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the
reporting date ralate to dsbtors that are in significant financial difficulties and have
defaulted on payments. These receivables are not secured by any collateral or credit

enhancements.

18.4 Amounts due from subsidiaries

Amounts due from subsidiaries are non-interest bearing and are repayable an
demand. These amounts are unsecured and to be settled in cash.

18.5 Deposits for log supplies

Ceposits for log supplies represent advances paid to log suppliers for iogs to be

purchased.

19. Inventories

Group
2016 2015
RM RM

Cost
Raw malerials 73199008 40,700,301
Wark-in-progress 5,755,028 7,464,047
Finished goods 3,790,800 951,686
Materizls and supplies 1,971,651 2,344 387
Goods-in-transit 1,153,308 1,302,988

20980895 22 772,408
Net realisable value
Finlshed goods 2,785 554 4,150,958

23,756 249 26,923,367
Lass: Allowance for slow moving inventories (227 ,008) {227 005}

23,528 244 25,686,352

The write-down of inventories to net realisable value recognised as an expense during
the financial year amourted to RM208,098 (2015: RM171,580}.
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CYMAOD HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445931 - )
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

20. Cash and bank balances

Cash in hand
Cash at banks
Dreposits with licensed banks

Cash and bank balances

Bank overdraft (Mote 21}

Less: Deposits with licensed
hanks with maturity of more
than three months

Cash and cash equivalents

Group Compa ng

2016 20158 2018 015
RM RM RM RM

45 GRG 44 047 - .
3,120,479 3,360 625 10,076 14,030
1,108,168 _ 4,360,846 - -
4,275,334 ¥, 765,618 10,076 14,030
{608 673) {150,088} - .
{500,000) {1,385,573) -
3,188,851 5,220,857 10,076 14,039

Deposits with licensed banks are mads up for varying periods of between a few days
and twelve months depending on the immediata cash requirements of the Group and
the Company, and earn interests at the respective short-term deposit rates. The
waighted average effsctive interest rate as at 31 December 2018 for the Group was

2.95% (2015 3.15%,).

Deposits with licensed banks of the Group amounting to RM500.000 (2015
RM1,385,573} are pledged as securities for bank guarantees granted to a subsidiary.

21. Loans and borrowings

Current

Secured:

Bank overdrafts
Banksrs' acceptance
Term loans

Mon-current
Secured:
Term loans

Total loans and Borrewings

Group
2016 2015

RM RM

80a.673 180,088
£,699,000 8,926,000

138,760 898,793
7447433 7,174,881
1,792 171 1,485 685
8,239,604 B,86680,566
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CYMAOD HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445931 - U}
{incorparated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

21. Loans and borrowings (continued)

The remaining maturities of the loans and borrowings are as follows:

On demand or within ane year
Belweaen one to two years
Betweaen two to five years
More than five years

Group
216 2015
RM RM

7447433 7,174,881
147,423 104,211
492,567 348,188

1,152,181 1,033,288

8,238,604 8,680 266

Rank ovardrafts

Bank overdrafts are denominated in Ringgit Malaysia (RM) and bear interest at BLR

+ 0.5% per annum.

Bankers' acceptance

These are used to finance purchases of the Group denominated in Rinagit Malaysia
{RM) and are short term in nature. The effective interest rate ranges from 3.45% to

4.03% {2015 3.45% to 3.95%) per annum.

Term loans

The lpans are repayable over 180 and 120 monthly instalment ending inthe year 20285,

and bear inierest at BLRE — 1.5% per annum.

These toans and borrowings are secured by

(iy  alegal charge over freehold land, leasehoid land and building belonging to the
subsidiary companies as disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements;

(i} a joint and several guarantee executed by two of the Diractors of the Company,

and

{ii) acorporate guarantee issued by the Company.
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CYMADO HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445031 - L)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

22. Trade and other payables

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM RM RM RM
Trade payables
Third parties 4,853,003 5,818 084 -
Non-trade payables
Amounts due to subsidlaries - - 11,401,807 11,058,138
Arcruals 2,042,955 2,978,691 144,000 180,000
Deposits raceived from
customers - 36,038 - -
Other payables 1,221,357 1,652,559 93,914 63,084
Sales receivable in advance - 822,648 - -
3,264,312 E490,8356 11838521 11288232
8,117 405 11,308,900 11,639521 11299232

22.1 Trade payables

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and the normal trade credit terms granted to
the Group range from 30 days to 80 days.

22.2 Other payables

QOther payables are nen-interest bearing and normaily settled on an average term of

Six (8) months.

22.3 Amounts due to subsidiaries

Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No, 445831 - L}
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

23. Deferred tax liabilities

Group
2016 2015
RM RM
Al January 1,853,163 1,782 841
Rerognised in profit or loss {Note 12} {145,504) 70,512
At 21 Dacember 1,707,568 1,853,153

The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities during the financial year

are as follows:
Praperty,
plant and
equipment Totak
RM RM
Group
Doferred tax fiabilities
At 1 January 2016 1,853 153 ;1,853,153
Recognised in profit or toss . {145584} {145,584)
At 31 December 2016 1,707,550 1,707,559
At 1 January 2015 1,782 641 1,782 841
Recognised in profit ar lass 70512 70,512
At 31 December 2015 1,853,163 1,853,153
Nao deferred tax asset has baen recognised for the foltowing items:
Group
2016 205
RM RM

Capital allowance in excess of depreciationf (depreciation in

excess of capital allowance) 1,077,009 {327 412}
Unutilized tax losses {26,180,670) (21,162 283)
Unabsorbed capital allowance {45,134,472) (42,215 574}
Unutilized reinvestment allowance _{1 5,683,373  (15,620,604)

(85,210,416} (79,225,883)

The urutilised tax losses, unabsorbed capital allowancss and unabsorbed
reinvestment allowances of the Group disclosed above are available indefinitely for
offsetting agalnst future taxable profits of the respective subsidiaries subject to no
substantial change in shareholdings under the Income Tax Act, 1867 and guidelines
issued by the tax authorily,

Thesa deferred tax asset is not recognised due to uncertainty of its recoverability.
&1
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CYMAOQ HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445931 - U}
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

24.
24.1

24.2

25.

25.1

25.2

Share capital, share premium and treasury shares (continued}

Share capital

The holders of ordinary shares (except treasury shares) are entitled to receive
dividends as and when declared by the CcmFany. All ordinary shares carry one vote
per share without restrictions and rank equally with regard to the Company's resigual
assels.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares relate to ordinary shares of the Company that are held by the
Company. The amount consists of the acquisition cost of treasury shares net of the
praceeds received on their subsequent sale or issuance.

The repurchase transactions were financed by internally generated funds. The shares
repurchased are being held as treasury sharas.

Of the total 75,000,000 issued and fully paid ordinary shares as at 31 December 2016,
1,464,500 (2015 1,464,500) are held as treasury shares by the Company. As at 31
December 2016, the number of outstanding ordinary shares in issue after the setoff is
therefore 73,535,500 (2015 73,535,500} ordinary shares of RM1 each.

Slgnificant related party transactions

ldentities of related parties

Parties are considered to ba related to the Group and the Company if the Group and
the Company have the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise
sighificant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice
versa, of where the Group or the Company and the party are subject to common
controt or common significant influence. Related parties could be individuals or other
entities.

Related party transactions

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Group and the Gompany had the following transactions with related
parties during the year:

: Group Company
2016 2015 2018 2016
RN RM RM RM
Salaries pald to wifa of Managing
Direcfor, Lin, Kai-Min 30,000 . - -
Salaries and bonus paid to
daughter of Director, Lin, Tsai- .
Kong - 10,000 - -

Trangactions with a company in
which a Directar of the Company
i& also Oirgctor and has financlal
interest:

- Purchase of plant and squipment - 320,000 - -
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25. Significant related party transactions (continued)

25.3 Compensation of key management pargannel

26.

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key management during the year
were as follows:

Group Company
2018 2015 2MH6 2015
RM RM RM RM
Shor-tarm employee benefits 1,823,000 2,273,000 144,000 159,000
Contributions to defined
contribution plans - - L -

1,823,000 2,273,000 144,000 159,000

Key management personnel are defined as those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and contralling the activities of the Group and of
the Company either directly or indiractly. The key management personnel comgprise
all the Directors of the Group and of the Company and members of senior
management of the Group.

The terms and conditions and prices of the above transactions are mutually agreed
between the parties. Related party balances are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand. Related party balances are disclosed in Note 18 and 22, and
other than amounts due from and to subsidiary companies, there are no related party
balances as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

Contingent liahilities

In February 2015, the subsidiary company of the Company was served with writ of
summons by a sub-contractor demanding repayment of amounts alleged owed to
tham teotalling RM504,052 together with interest and other cosi. The subsidiary
company is disputing this claim and as at the date of this report, the court case Is still
in progress. Due to uncertainty of the eventual outcome, this amount is not recognised
in the financial statements hut disclosed as a contingent liability in accordance with
the requiremants of MFRS 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets,
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27. Financial instruments

27.1 Categoties of financial instruments

Group

Financial agsets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and bank halances

Company

Financial asscts
Trade and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Group

Financial labilities
Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings

Company

Financial liabllitles
Trade and other payables
Loans and korowings

2018 2015
Carrying Loans and Carrying  Loans and
amount receivahles ampunt recalvables
RM RM RM RM
22 398 Bo7 22,398,607 25,211,408 25,211,408
4 275,334 4,275,334 ¥ 765,618 7765818
26,674,031 26 674,031 32 977 028 32 977,026
11,080,391 11,060,391 11,180,381 11,160,391
10,078 10,0764 14,038 14,039
11,070,467 11,070,467 11,194 430 11,184,430
2016 201%
Financial Financlal
labllitles at llabliitles at
Carrying amortised Carrying  amortised
amount cost amount cost
RM R RM RN
8,117,403 8,117,403 11,308,900 11,308,500
0,238 604 0,232,604 8660585 R 880,566
17,357 007 17,357,007 19,950,466 19,968,468
11,638,521 11,639,521 11,298 232 11,209,232
11,639,521 11,630,621 11,200 232 11,288 232
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27

271

27.2

27.3

Financial instruments (continued)
Categories of financial instruments {continued}

A reconciliation of trade and othar receivables in financial assets to the amounts
reffected in the Statements of Financial Position is as follows:

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM RM RM RM
Trade and other receivables
As reflected in the Statements of
Financial Position {Note 18) 23,388,877 28232 814 11,066,704 71,185,822
Lezs: Prepaymenis {995,180} {1,373.973) {6,313) {15,431}

Less: Non-refundable deposits {1,847 233
Loans and receivables 22 398 697 25211,408 11,080,381 11,180,391
Net gains and losses arising from financial Instruments
Group Company
2016 2016 2016 2015
RM RM RM RM
Met gains/ (losses) arising on:
Loans and receivables
- Impairmant loss - f18,380) - (15,320)
- Realised and unrealised gain/
{loss} on foreign exchange 12,853 807 440 - 20,184
- Intarest income 102,118 3.006 - -
Financial liabilities at amortised '
cost '
- Interest expense {387,304 {306,808} - -
{282 335} 587 338 - 3,794

Fair value of financial instruments

Trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and loans and barrowings are
not carried at fair value but their carrying amounts are a reascnabls approximation of
falr valua. The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities are a
reasonable approximation of fair values, either due to thair short-term nature or that
they are fioating rate instruments that are re-priced to market interest rates on or near
the reporting date.
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27.

Financial instruments {continued)

27.4 Financial guarantees

28.

28.1

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on probabilily weighted
discounted cash flow method. The probability is estimated and assigned using the
following key assumptions:

{i) The likelihood of the guaranteed party defaulting within the guaranteed period,

{iy The exposure on the portion that is not expected to be recovered due to the
guarantaed party's default; and

{ii} The estimated loss exposure if the party guarantesd were to default.

Based on tha ahove factors, as the requirement to reimburse is remote and the Group
does not axpect to incur material losses under the corporate guarantees it has issued,
the fair value of these corporate guarantees are not considered material and therefore
have not been recognised in the financial statements of the Group.

Financial risk management

The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from their
aperations and the use of financial instruments. The key financial risks include credit
risk, liquidity risk, Interest rate risk and foreign currency risk.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the
managameant of thase risks, which are executed by the Group’s key management
parsonnal. The audit commiltee provides independent oversight to the effectiveness
of the risk management process.

It is, and has been throughout the current and previous financial year, the Group's
policy that no derivatives shall be undertaken except for the use as'hedging
Instruments where appropriate and cost-efficient. The Group does not apply hedge
accounting.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s and the Company's
exposure to the above-menticned financial rigks and the objectives, policies ang
processes for the management of these risks.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of |oss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should
a counterparty defauit on its obligations. Tha Greup's and the Company's exposure to
credit rigk arises primarlly from trade and other receivables, For other financial assets
{including cash and bank balances}, the Group and the Company minimise cradit risk
by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.

The Group's cbjective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses
incurred due to increased credit risk exposure. The Group trades only with recognised
and creditworthy third parties. In addition, receivable balances are monitered on an
ongoing basis.
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28. Financial risk management (continued}
28.1 Cradit risk [continued)

Exposure to credit risk

As st the reporting date, the Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to credit
risk is represented by

(iy  the carrying amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the
Statements of Financial Position; and

(i) a nominal amount of RM10,000,000 {2015: RM10,000,000} relating to a
corporate guarantee provided by the Company to a bank for credit facilities
granted to its subsidiaries.

As disclosed in Note 18, the Group's trade and other receivables are not securad by
any collaterals or credit enhancements.

Financial assets that ara nsither past due nor impaired

Information regarding trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired is
disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements. Deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term investment that are neither past due nor impaired
are placed with or entered into with reputable financial institutions or companias with
high credit ratings and no history of defauft.

Financial assets that are either past due or impaired

Information regarding financial assets that are either past due or impaired is disclosed
in Note 18 to the financial statements.

Cradit risk concentration profile

The Group determines concentration of credit risk by monitoring the country profile of
its trade receivables on an ongoing hasis. The credit risk concentration of the Group's
trade receivables at the reporting date are as follows:

2016 2015

% of % of

RM total RM total
Malaysia 12 754 558 F3%  9,319432 53%
Singapore 374,415 2% 462,353 3%
Australia 2948162 2% 1,003,758 6%
Middle East 211,218 5%  5,587486 32%
United States of Amearica 1,821,770 9% 744 737 4%,
Other countries 1,695,191 10% 304 B32 2%

17,656,786  100% 17422458  100%
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28,
28.1

28.2

Financial risk managemeant {continued)
Credit risk {continued)

The Group also has concentration of credit risk from & (2015 7) individual
counterparties totalling RM8,006,154 (2015: RM14 662,542), representing 34% (2015;
52%) of total trade and other receivables. Concentration of credit risk from individual
counterparties is monitored based on individual balances above RI1,000,000,

Liquidtity risk

Liguidity risk ig the risk that the Group and the Company wil! encountar difficulty in
meeting financial obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group's and the
Company's exposure te liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities
of financial assets and liabilities. The Group's and the Company's objective is to
maintain a balance betwsen continuity of funding and flaxibility through the use of
stand-by credit facilitias.

As part of its overall liquidity management, the Group maintains sufficient levels of
cash or cash convetible investments to meet its working capital requirements. In
addition, the Group strives to maintain available banking facilitias at a reasonable level
to its overall debt position.

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractial maturities

The following table sets out the maturity profile of the Group's and the Company's
financial liabilities as at the and of the reporting period based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including irterest payments computed using contractual
rates ar, if floating, based on the rates at the end of the reporting period):

On demand
ar within One to five  Qver flve
one year years years Tetal
RM RM RN RM
Group
2018
Financial assets
Trade and other racaivables 22,308,807 - - 22388687
Cash and bank balances 4 275 334 “ - 4,275,334
Total financial assets 25,674,031 - - 26674031
Financlal labilities
Trade and other payables 8,117,403 - - 8117403
Loans and borrowlngs T.547 307 858 886 1,177,201 o 883484
Taotal financial liakilities 15,664,800 G5B 856 1177201 17800897
Taotal net finencial assets!
{liabilitias) 11,009,231 {958,896} {1.177.201} 8,873,134
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28. Financial risk mahagement {continued)

28.2 Liguidity risk {continued)

On demand
or within Oneto five  Qverfive
onhe year years years Total
RM RM RM RM

Group
2015
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 25,211,408 - - 26211408
Cash and bank balances 7765618 - - 7765618
Total financial assats 32877028 - - 32877026
Financlal Hahilitles
Trade and other payables 11,308,200 - - 11,308,900
Loans and borrowings 7,257,252 724,866  1,0554852 9,037, 760
Total financial Fabilities 18,666,152 724656 1,055,852 20,346,660
Total net financial assats!

{liabilites) 14 410,874 (724,656) (1,055,852) 12630366
Company
2016
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 11,080,381 - - 41,060,391
Cash and bank balances 10.076 - - 10,076
Totel financia! assets 11,070 467 - 11,070,467
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 11,638,521 - 11,659,521
Loans and horrowings - - -
Tota! financial liabilities 11,638 521 - 11,632 521
Total net financial liabilitiss {564,054} - - {568,054)
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28. Financial risk management (continued}

28.2 Liguidity risk (contlnued)

28.3

Company
2015

Financial assets

Trade and other racaivables
Cash and bank balances
Total financial asseis
Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables
Loans and horrowings

Tatal financial liahilities

Total net financial liahilities

On demand
or within Qneto five  Over flve
one year years years Total
RM RM RN RM
14,180,391 - - 11,180,391
14,038 - - 14,039

11,194,430 - - 11,184,430
11,299,232 - - 11,288.232
11,299,232 - - 11,288,232

(104802} - - {104,802)

At the reporting date, the counterparty to the financial guarantees does not have a
right to demand cash as the default has not occurred. Accordingly, financial
guarantees under the scope of MFRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are not included in the above maturity profile analysis.

Interast rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or futtre cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate becauss of changes in market interest rates,

The Group's exposure to interest rate rigk arises mainly from its loans and borrowings.
All of the Group’s and the Company's loans and borrowings are at fioating rates and
contractually re-priced at intervals of less than Six {6) months from the reporting date.
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2B.

28.3

28.4

Financial risk management (continued)
Interest rate rlsk (continued}

Sensitivity analysis for intarest rate risk

The following table details the sensitivity analysis to a reasanably posaible change in
the interest rates as at the end of the reporting period, with ali other variables held
constant:

Group
2016 2015
RM RM
Effects on loss after taxatlon
Increase of 100bp/45hn {12.884) {5, 7T0E)
Decrease of 100bpfdShp 12,884 _ 5,706

The above sensitivity analysis is arising mainly as a result of its floating rate bank
borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fiows of a financisl
Imstrurment will fluctuate because of changs in foreign exchange rate.

The Group has transactional currency exposure arising primarily through sales that
are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily the United States
Doltar {USD).

Approximately 43% (2015:42%) of the Group's sales are denominated in foreign
currancies whilst all the costs are denominated jn the functional currency of the Group
entities. The Group and the Company alse hold cash and cash equivalents
denominated in foreign currencies for working capital purposes.

As at the reporting date, the currency exposure of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not denominated in their functionat currency are set out below:

2
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28. Financial risk management {continued)

28.4 Foreign currency risk (continued)

Group Company
2018 2015 2018 M5
RM RM RM RM
United States Dollar
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances 265756 2.516,288 - -
Trade receivables 3,115,847 2,625,940 - -

3,381,703 5,142,228
Flnanclal liabilities
Trade and other payablas (218,073) (843,703} -

Net financlat assets held in
non-functional currengies 3,163,630 4,208,525 -

Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk

The following table details the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change in
the foreign currencies as at the end of the reporting period, with all other variables

held constant;

Group Company
2016 2015 2018 2015
RM RM RM RM
Effects on loss aftar taxatlon
UsD! R
Strengthened by 20%
{2015 20%,; {B2.871) {847 800) - -
Weakened by 20%
[2015; 20%:) 62 871 887 880 - -
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29. Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's cafital management is to ensure that it maintains
a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to suppert its business and
maximise sharaholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of
changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. Mo changes were made in the objechives, policies or processes
during the year ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015,

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by equity
attributable to owners of the Company. The Group's policy is to keep the gaaring ratic
within an acceptable lavel,

Group Company

Note 2016 2015 2018 2015

RM RM RM RM
Leans and borrowings 21 8,239,604 B B&0 566 - -
Less; Cash and bank balances 20 (4,275,334 (7,765 618) {10,078} 114,03%)
Met debt 4,964,270 894,048  (10,076) {14,039)

Equity attributable to owners of

the Company 70,085,508 77,558,364 78,514,688 78,998,549
Gearing ralio 0.07 0.1 - -

Ungler the requireaments of Bursa Malaysia Practice Note 17, the Group is re%uireci to
maintain a consolldated shareholders’ equity equal to or not less than the 25% of the
issued and paid up capital (excluding treasury shares). The Group has complied with
this requiremant.

The Group is not subject to any other externally imposed capital requirements.

30. Segment information

30.1 Operating segment
The Group is principally involved in manufacturing and sale of plywood products,
which are principally carried out in Malaysia and therefore only has one reportable

segment. Accordingly, information by operating segments on the Group's opsrations
as required by MFRS 8 is not presented.
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30. Segment information (continued)
30.2 Gaographlcal information

The Group operates from Malaysia and tharsfore all revenues and assets are derived/
located in Malaysia. Revenues by the geographical location of the customers are as

follows:
Group
2016 2015
RM RM

Asia 11,240,334 4,770,042
Europe ‘1,8?1,251 2,295 424
Malaysia £5.901.086 7H 772935
Uinited Statas of Americe 7.B17.031 13,008 064
South-West Pacific 8,180,243 13,422 975

Others 19,641,883 22,379,780

115,560,808 131,646 220

30.3 Major customers

Revenue from 23 (2015. 16) major customers amounted to BEMG4 657 467 (2015
RM72,666,418) arising from sale of wood products,

31. Event after the reporting period

In February 20186, the Group completed an interna! restructuring merging the plymill
operations of its subsidiary companigs, Cymao Plywood Sdn Bhd and Inovwood Sdn
Bhd into a single operstion for cost savings and efficiency purpeses. Following the
merging of cperations, management is now considering its options available on the
resulting idle land, buildings and machineries with a carrying value totalling
RM4 472,513, howaver no decision has yet been made on this matter.
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32. Correction of error

The breakdown of deferred tax liabilittes in Note 23 was incorrect in the previous
financial years.

As previously

As restated stated
RM RM
Defarred tax liabilities arising from:
Property, plant and equipment 1,853,153 3,998,476
Unutilised tex losses and unabsorbed allowances - f2,145,323)
1,853,153 1,853,153

The correction had no impact to the oversll balance as it was only a classification error
within deferred tax liabilities.

33. Supplementary financial information on the breakdown of realised
and unrealised profits or losses

The breakdown of the accumulated |osses of the Group and of the Company as at 31
Decembar, into realised and unrealised profite/{losses), pursuant to Paragraphs 2.08
and 2.23 of the Bursa Malaysia Main Market Listing Requirements, is as follows:

Group Company

206 2015 2016 2015

RM RM RM RM
Total accumulated losses
of the Company and
ita subsidiaries
- Realizad {17 506.674) (10,233,855) (13,228,780) (12,744,820}
- Unrealized 1,853,153 1,853,153 - -

{15,663 521) (8,380,602 {13,228,790} (12,744,928)
Less Consolidation
ad|ustments (6,004,451} {5 B04,612) - -

Total aceumulated losses as
per Statements of
Flnancial Position (21,657,872 (14,185,114)  (13,228,780) (12,744,829}

34. General
The Company, incorporated in Malaysia, is a public limited liability company that is
incarporated and domiciled in Malaysia, and is listed on the Main Market of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad.

The principal activity of the Company is investmant holding.
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34. General (continued)

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 16 to the financial
statements.

There has bsen no significant change in the nature of these principal activities during
the financial year ended 31 Dscember 20186.

The registerad office and principal place of business of the Company are located at
MPT 4604, 3rd Floor, Lot 15-16, Block B, Bandaran Baru, Jalan Baru, 1000 Tawau,
Sabah, Malaysia and 9.1 KM, Jalan Batu Sapi, 90000 Sandakan, Sabah, Malaysia
respectively.

The financia! statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia.

These financial statements ware authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in
accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 272 AR 2N
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DETAILED STATEMENT OF PROFIT QR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Other operating income

Liakilities no longer in existence written back
Reslized gaih on foreign axchange

Less: Administrative expsnges

Advertisement expensas
Auditors’ remunaration
- Statutory audit

- Current year

- Under provision in priar year
- Cther services
Bank charges
Depreclation of property, plant and equipment
Diractors’ ramuneration
Entertalnment
Ineurance
Goods and service tax expenses
Printing and stationary
Professional fees
Repair and malntenances
Slaff refreshment
Sundry expenses
Telephone and postages
Tra&ining
Transportation charges
Travelling expenses

Less: Other expenses
Bad deirs written off

Loss before taxation

2018
RM

5313

5,313

7820

42,000

37,000
67
10,481
144,000
810
12,748
12,104
38,208
78,500
227

81,208
3.318
1,200
9915
8,568

489,174

f483.861)

(483,861)

2016
RM

264,600
20,184

284 784

8,385

36,000
5,000
5,000

204

20,881

158,000

11,731
2,782
40,432
76,047
6,473
270
110,870
5,703
1,200
4,468

27,062

§25.718

{240 834)

16,380

16,380

{257,324)

This Statement iz prepared for management purposes only and does nof form part of the

statutory audited financial statements of the Company.




